Public Document Pack

Helen Barrington
Director of Legal and

@ DE R BYS H I R E Democratic Services

County Hall

County Council Matock

Derbyshire
DE4 3AG

Extension 38357

Direct Dial 01629 538357
Ask for Danny
Sunderland

PUBLIC

To: Members of Cabinet Member Meeting - Corporate Services

Date Not Specified
Dear Councillor,

Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet Member Meeting - Corporate
Services to be held at 11.00 am on Thursday, 15 April 2021. This
meeting will be held virtually. As a member of the public you can view the
virtual meeting via the County Council's website. The website will provide
details of how to access the meeting, the agenda for which is set out
below.

Yours faithfully,

Helen Barrington
Director of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

PART | - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS

1. To receive declarations of interest (if any)
2. To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2021 (Pages 1 - 2)

3. Performance and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 2020-21 as at
Quarter 3 (Pages 3 - 16)



Supply of Support and Maintenance for Electronic Document and Records
Management System (EDRM) (Pages 17 - 20)

Exclusion of the Public

To move “That under Regulation 4 (2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting for
the following items of business on the grounds that in view of the nature of
the items of business, that if members of the public were present, exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the
Local Government Act 1972 would be disclosed to them.”

PART Il - EXEMPT ITEMS

6.

7.

To receive declarations of interest (if any)

To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2021
(Pages 21 - 24)



Agenda ltem 2

PUBLIC

MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE
SERVICES held on 11 March 2021.

PRESENT
Cabinet Member — Councillor A Foster
Also in attendance — Councillor P Murray

12/21 MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 11
February 2021 be confirmed as a correct record.

13/21 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC RESOLVED that under Regulation
4 (2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the public be excluded
from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that in view
of the nature of the items of business, that if members of the public were
present, exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 would be disclosed to them.

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC WERE
EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING

1. To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 11 February
2021 (contains exempt information)

2. To consider the exempt reports of the Managing Executive Director
Commissioning, Communities and Policy on:

a) Extension of Corporate Telephony, supply, support and
maintenance and associated services contract

b) Supply of an externally hosted Claims Management Solution

c) Terms of sale of former Chesterfield Register Office and 1 New
Beetwell Street — Noting report

d) Acceptance of offer — former Infant & Junior School, Chesterfield
Road, North Wingfield

(contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Authority holding that information)

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3
Public

Agenda Item No.3

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE SERVICES
15 April 2021

Joint Report of the Managing Executive Director, Commissioning,
Communities and Policy and the Director of Finance & ICT

PERFORMANCE AND BUDGET MONITORING/FORECAST OUTTURN
2020/2021 AS AT QUARTER 3

1 Purpose of the Report

To provide the Cabinet Member with an update of the Council Plan
performance position and the revenue budget position of the Corporate
Services portfolio for 2020/2021 up to the end of December 2020 (Quarter 3).

2 Information and Analysis
2.1 Integrated Reporting

This report presents both financial and Council Plan performance data. The
performance summary sets out progress on the Council Plan deliverables and
measures led by the Corporate Services portfolio. The remainder of the report
gives a summary and detail on the revenue budget position for the portfolio.

As an overview, the report shows that progress is "good" for the majority of
the Council Plan deliverables led by the portfolio, however the deliverable
"Value for Money board" has been flagged as "requiring review" because of
delays caused by covid-19. After the use of additional Covid-19 funding, the
budget forecast position for 2020/2021 is an overspend of £2.314m. ltis
forecast that £2.513m of savings will have been achieved by the year end.
This compares to target savings of £5.866m and the value of savings
initiatives, which have been identified for implementation in the current year, of
£4.931m.

2.2 Performance Summary

The following shows an overview for Quarter 3 of progress on the Council
Plan deliverables and measures relating directly to Corporate Services.

PHR-1177 Page 3



Public

Deliverable Progress Performance Measures Against Target

Money raised
from the
disposal of
land and
buildings

Performance Measures Against Target

2018/2019 |2019/2020 |2020/2021 |Target Performance
Average number of days lost per appointment to sickness (Not 9.9 10.4 9.4 10.0 [ |
including schools)
Amount of money raised from the disposal of land and buildings £2,898,546 | £2,741,393
Key Strong Good [ Review [ Action Data not available/Target not set

Progress is "good" for the majority of the Council Plan deliverables led by the
portfolio.

Key areas of success are:

¢ All Departments have agreed to transition contract data onto the central
contracts register. When complete, we will have a Council wide view of
the contractual landscape to enable better procurement planning.

e The first business cases for asset rationalisation have been approved by
the Limited Liability Partnership. Sales of land and buildings has raised
over £2.7m so far this year.

e The Council remains on track to achieve its target of 10 days lost per
appointment to sickness across the Council. There was an improvement
to 9.4 days in quarter 3 from 10.3 at quarter 2.

PHR-1177 Page 4



Public

Key areas for consideration are:

e Covid-19 caused delays to the Value for Money Board however progress
Is now being made and the objectives are on track to be delivered.

Further information on the portfolio’s Council Plan performance are included at
Appendix A.

2.3 Budget Forecast Summary

The net controllable budget for the Corporate Forecast outturn against
Services portfolio is £44.036m. An additional target budget
£3.296m Covid-19 funding will be added to the

budget to give a total of £47.332m. r:

ACTION

The Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement
prepared for quarter 3 indicates there will be a
forecast year-end overspend of £5.610m without
Covid-19 funding.

As this overspend will be supported by the use of
£3.296m of additional Covid-19 funding, which has
been allocated to the Council to support the costs
incurred as a result of the pandemic, the forecast
position is an overspend of £2.314m.

49.646

£ Millions

The significant areas which make up this forecast are shown in the following
table and graph below:

Corporate Services Budget ltems

Full Year Forecast |Percentage
Controllable Forecast Under (-)/ | Under (-)/ Budget
Budget £m £ Over Spend Over Performance
m
£m Spend
Strategic Management 0.301 0.372 0.071 23.6% |
Finance & ICT 17.883| 17.564 -0.319 -1.8%
Legal Services 4.311 5.141 0.830 19.3% (]
Human Resources 8.205 8.213 0.008 0.1%
County Property 10.157| 15.095 4,938 48.6% 3
Members 1.954 1.991 0.037 1.9%
Miscellaneous 1.225 1.270 0.045 3.7% |
Total 44.036| 49.646 5.610 12.7% I
Covid-19 Funding 3.296
Total after use of additional 47.332| 49.646 2.314 4.9% ]
funding
3
PHR-1177

Page 5



Public

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend

Strategic Management I

Finance & ICT

Legal Services -

Human Resources

Members

Miscellaneous I

-1.000 -0.500 0.000 0.500 1000 1.500 2.000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000 5..
£million

2.4 Key Variances

2.4.1 Finance & ICT, underspend £0.319m

The ICT section is planning to make significant savings from restructuring
various parts of the business over the next three years, with the first tranche of
the review being implemented in 2020/21. The underspend is as a result of
vacancy control, which will assist in managing the ICT restructure more
effectively. Corporate Finance are also reporting underspends as a result of
vacancy control in preparation for the finance review.

2.4.2 Legal Services, overspend £0.830m

Previously planned Legal Services savings of £0.375m will no longer be
achieved until a new Legal Services operating model is introduced. Work on
achieving the new model is underway following the appointment of the
Director of Legal Services. The finalisation of the Democratic Services
savings target of £0.050m has yet to be determined.

PHR-1177 Page 6



Public

In Legal Services there has been a need to fill vacancies due to the excessive
work pressures. Part of the overspend is within the Childcare team where
demand in childcare cases has led to the employment of an additional 1.6 fte
posts. These are not considered to be a COVID cost as they are current
vacancies and are needed to relieve the pressure on existing staff. Further
staff are required in order to meet the additional workload a business case has
been produced as the existing budget is not sufficient for the full establishment
that is required to meet the normal workload.

Democratic Services has incurred additional costs on the support and
maintenance of the Audio Visual system in the Council Chamber of £0.016m.
In addition they anticipate reduced income of £0.017m from the Police and
Crime Panel grant, these staff are being utitlised on activities which do not
relate to the grant.

The Management and Members Personnel Assistant's budget had savings
applied last year (2019/20) which was to be achieved by reducing the staffing
budget. This has not happened and as such is overspending this year
(£0.033m).

A reduction in costs on equipment rental in the Business Unit has resulted in
an underspend of £0.015m.

2.4.3 Human Resources, overspend £0.008m

Phase 2 savings of the HR Review will be realised in 2021/22 as agreed by
Cabinet in September 2019. For 2020/21 these savings will be met through
use of the CCP underspend reserve.

2.4.4 County Property, overspend £4.938m

The overspend has decreased by £0.005m (from £4.943m at Quarter 2). The
forecast year end overspend for County Property includes £2.224m Covid
costs. These have increased by an additional £1.25m Covid 19 costs
recognised in the DSO Trading Account. This has been offset by additional
fee income of £1.178m that has been realised since Quarter 2 in respect of
Homes for Older People refurbishments and revisions to a number of projects.

This overspend includes a savings target of £1.893m which will be achieved
through the partnership work with PSP Derbyshire LLP (Public Sector PLC
Derbyshire Limited Liability Partnership).

Expenditure is at the same rate as in previous years yet income is
substantially lower as Covid-19 is having an additional impact by reducing the
rate at which fee income can be earned on capital construction projects.

5

PHR-1177 Page 7



Public
2.5 Budget Savings

Budget reduction targets totalling £5.190m were allocated for the year. Further
reductions allocated in prior years, totalling £0.676m, had not been achieved
and were brought forward to the current year. This has resulted in total
reduction targets to be achieved of £5.866m at the start of the year.

The value of the savings initiatives which have been identified for
implementation in the current year is £4.931m.

The shortfall between the total targets and the identified savings initiatives is
£0.935m.

Budget Savings

BlidgetSavingsilarge 51866

Identified 4931

Forecast Budget Savings 2.513

£0.0m £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m £2.0m £2.5m £3.0m £3.5m £4.0m £4.5m £5.0m £5.5m £6.0m

The shortfall between the total reductions expected to be achieved and the
identified savings initiatives at the start of the year is £2.418m. This includes
Property’s target of £1.893m which will be achieved by introducing PSP
Derbyshire LLP (Public Sector PLC Derbyshire Limited Liability Partnership).
The LLP is now established and projects will require reporting and validation
before they can commence. Legal savings of £0.375 will not be achieved this
year due to delays in implementing the Legal Services Delivery Model
(Core/Core Plus offer) and increased work due to Covid-19. HR savings are
supported by £0.723m from reserves as this will not be achieved until phase
two of the review on 1 April 2021. Savings achieved include £0.250m on
additional interest receipts in Corporate Finance that will be covered by Covid-
19 funding this year.

PHR-1177 Page 8



Public

It is forecast that £2.513m of savings will have been achieved by the year-end.
The table below shows performance against the target.
Budget Savings Initiatives

Forecast to Shortfall (-)/
be Achieved Additional

Target by the end Savings
of 2020/21  Achieved
£m £m
ICT Contract review 0.075 0.075 0.000
ICT Benefit from new business systems 0.100 0.100 0.000
ICT Restructure 0.500 0.500 0.000
ICT Rationalisation of systems 0.100 0.100 0.000
Corp Fin-Insurance fund contributions 0.350 0.350 0.000
Corp Fin-Additional interest receipts 0.250 0.250 0.000
Corporate Finance restructure 0.140 0.140 0.000
Corp Fin VR/VER Budget 0.018 0.018 0.000
Legal Services 0.375 0.000 -0.375 |
Legal-Democratic Services 0.050 0.000 -0.050 ]
Legal-Business Centre 0.050 0.050 0.000
Property-Introduction of PSP Derbyshire LLP 1.893 0.000 -1.893 |
Review HR structures 0.930 0.930 0.000
Channel Shift 0.100 0.000 -0.100 ]
Total Position 4.931 2.513 -2.418 ]
Shortfall/(Surplus) of Identified Savings 0.935 0.000 -0.935
Budget Savings Target 5.866 2.513 -3.353 3
Budget
Reduction

Amount £m
Prior Year B/f 0.676
Current Year 5.190
Budget Savings Target 5.866

2.6 Growth Items and One-Off Funding

The portfolio received the following additional budget allocations in 2020/2021.:

2.6.1 ICT strategy - £0.200m ongoing
To ensure that ICT is aligned with the requirements of the business, in
particular in delivering the Enterprising Council programme.

2.6.2 Grade 9 legal assistant - £0.023m ongoing
The assistant will support the Adult Care team in Legal Services.

2.6.3 Legal Services - £0.300m one-off
To support the provision of service due to the level of demand.

PHR-1177 Page 9



Public

2.6.4 GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) - £0.180m one-off
To fund the completion of the GDPR project.

2.6.5

2.7

Financial Risks

IKEN (Legal case management platform) - £0.042m one-off
To fund the replacement of the Solcase system in Legal services.

There is a risk that the following issues could negatively impact on the
portfolio’s forecast outturn position reported in the Forecast Summary above:

Financial Risks

the Forecast Summary
above. It is difficult to
guantify the risk at present.

Service Risk Sensitivity* Likelihood
1=Low,
£m 5 = High
There is a risk that Covid-19
could negatively impact on
the portfolio’s forecast
All outturn position reported in 0.500 2

*Sensitivity represents the potential negative impact on the outturn position
should the event occur.

PHR-1177

Page 10




Public

2.8 Earmarked Reserves

Earmarked reserves totalling £56.684m are currently held to support future
expenditure. Details of these reserves are as follows:

Reserves
£m
Insurance and Risk Management 20.085
Planned Building Maintenance 6.525
Commissioning, Communities and Policy v 4.678
Corporate-Business Rates Pool 4.672
Uninsured Financial loss v 3.082
Computer Reserve Fund @ 2.854
Budget Management 2.615
PFI/BSF 2.340
Property DSO 2.299
Property IMP 2018 v 2.033
Change Management 1.778
Communities Priorities Programme 0.901
Exchequer 0.850
Core Systems + 0.667
Property IMP scheme 0.591
Demolition of buildings 0.377
Equal Pay 0.277
Local Authorities Energy Programme 0.060
Total Reserves v 56.684

Key
# Reserve has increased over the quarter
Reserve is unchanged over the quarter
v Reserved has decreased over the quarter

PHR-1177 Page 11



2.9

Debt Position

Public

The profile of the debt raised, relating to income receivable by services within
the Commissioning, Communities and Policy department, is as follows:

Debt Position

0-30Days |31-365Days (1-2Years |2-3Years |3-4Years |Over4 Years |Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1.133 1.677 0.758 0.187 0.082 0.180 4.017
4 +» 4 » v +»
28.2% 41.7% 18.9% 4.7% 2.0% 4.5% 100.0%
Aged Debt over Time

[

0-30Days B
e

31-365Days B

1-2Years | — @ Dec 2020

2 - 3 Years E
- @® Sep 2020

3-4Years |
— ® May 2020

Over 4 Years po
Mar 2020
Total
0 0.5 15 2 25 3 3.5 4 45 5 55 6
£million

In the year up to 31 December 2020 the value of debt that has been written off
totals £0.029m.

3

As detailed in the report.

4

Other Considerations

Financial Considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, legal and human rights, equal
opportunities, human resources, environmental, health and property and
transport considerations.

5

No.

PHR-1177

Key Decision

Page 12



Public
6 Call-In

Is it required that call-in be waived in respect of the decisions proposed in the
report? No.

7 Background Papers

Held on file within the Commissioning, Communities and Policy Department.
Officer contacts — Julia Wilks (finance), Matthew Walters (performance).

8 Officers’ Recommendation

That the Cabinet Member notes the report and considers whether there are
any further actions that should be undertaken to improve the budget position
moving forwards or to address performance, where it has not met the desired
level.

EMMA ALEXANDER PETER HANDFORD
Managing Executive Director Director of
Commissioning, Communities and Finance & ICT
Policy

11
PHR-1177

Page 13



¥T abed

4]

APPENDIX A RESTRICTED

Corporate Services Quarter 3 Performance Report 2020/2021

Progress on Council Plan deliverables and key measures

Value for Money

Ensured Council contract decisions deliver value for money through the Council Value for Money Board

The impact of Covid-19 on County Procurement and Service Function resources meant that the majority of Value for Money (VFM) Board meetings planned for 2020 were cancelled with procurement
priority given to supporting and maintaining service delivery.

This has set back the planned progress for this deliverable however the first set of three contract reviews have been undertaken and will be presented at the next board meeting. Meetings for 2021 have
all been scheduled and in addition a presentation is arranged for 27th January 2021 to demonstrate the proposed new approach to delivering and measuring social value and value for money. Whilst
behind the planned timescale the objectives of the VFM board are on track to be delivered.

Improved employee well-being by redefining and reprioritising the Wellbeing Action Plan

The Employee Assistance Programme has been extended for a further 6 months.

The Sickness Absence Delivery Group has reviewed the primary sickness absence codes and developed and implemented new mandatory 9 4

secondary codes for managers to complete when entering employee sickness . This will allow the Council to better understand the reasons for

sickness absence and target interventions accordingly. Compulsory training for line managers on sickness recording and management along Days lost per appointment to
with manager guides to recording sickness have also been developed and launched to encourage accurate day one reporting of sickness R

absence. SICkneSS

ﬁ 31 DEC 20

Monthly sickness absence data is now presented to departmental management teams.

The average days lost per appointment in the 12 months up to the end of quarter 3 was 9.4, an improvement on the quarter 2 figure of 10.3
days and below the target of 10.0 days set for this year.

12

PHR-1177



GT abed

APPENDIX A RESTRICTED

Maximised the opportunities presented by Covid-19 to reduce our operating footprint, enabling increased operational efficiency through
rationalisation of our land and building assets

The rationalisation of the Council's property portfolio is progressing following the establishment of Vertas (Derbyshire) Limited and Concertas
(Derbyshire) Limited. A methodology for asset reviews has been developed and a prioritisation programme for the next three years
established. A capital programme of work for the coming year and specific capital bids have been compiled and will be approved during
quarter. . .
Money raised from the disposal
of land and buildings

30 NOV 20

A total of £89,012 was received during October and November against the sale of 3 properties with additional funds to be received on
completion.

Achieved key milestones in the implementation of the Procurement Strategy to help the Council to procure goods and services at reduced costs
which achieve value for money

A key milestone has been achieved in quarter 3 with all Departments now agreeing to transition contract data onto the central contracts register. On completion this means we will have successfully
delivered a Council wide view of our contractual landscape which will enable better procurement planning and contract visibility.

Proposals for a Contract Management Professional Standards team have now been put forward to enable another key milestone to be achieved. This team will be key in delivering better procurements
and driving value for money.

Key Strong Good Review m Action Data not available/Target not set

13
PHR-1177



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4
Public

Agenda Item No.4
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE SERVICES
15 April 2021

Report of the Managing Executive Director
Commissioning, Communities and Policy

SUPPLY OF SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE FOR ELECTRONIC
DOCUMENT AND RECORDS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (EDRM)

1 Purpose of the Report

To seek approval to use the ComIT 2 Health Trust Europe Framework under
Protocol 2A of the County Council’s Financial Regulations to procure a
contract for EDRM maintenance and support for one year from 1 April 2021 to
31st March 2022.

2 Information and Analysis

The Council’s EDRM solution was acquired in September 2009 for the longer-
term storage and preservation of key electronic records. The system is
developed and supported by OpenText UK Ltd, and was a product
recommended for its close integration capabilities with SAP by CapGemini
who assisted the Council’s SAP implementation.

The Data Management strategy was completed by external consultants in
September 2020 and strongly recommended a Microsoft SharePoint EDRM
solution as a replacement for the existing OpenText system and for the
storage of all unstructured data. Due to the complexity and volume of
documents (over 6 million items) there will be a significant period of planning
required to transition to the new system, estimated at a minimum of 2-3 years.
Support from the supplier will be required to keep the EDRM system fully
functional and secure during the transition period.

The existing contract with OpenText has been extended on a number of
occasions and it is proposed that the ComIT 2 Health Trust Europe
Framework is used under Protocol 2A to award a new support contract for one
year. During this time the Data Management Strategy project will have
started, and the support and maintenance requirements can be reviewed
against progress for a further one or two years.

Page 17
PHR-1202



Public

The Framework is a single lot framework which covers hardware, software,
security, technology assisted services, and computer science. The
Framework also has the option to award to a supplier via a Direct Award,
which is the preferred option.

A Business Case for the use of the ComIT 2 Health Trust Europe Framework
has been approved by the Director of Finance and ICT and Director of Legal
Services in accordance with Protocol 2A of the County Council’s Financial
Regulations. Award of the contract from the Framework is a matter which is
delegated to the Managing Executive Director Commissioning, Communities
and Policy in accordance with Protocol 2B of the County Council’s Financial
Regulations.

3 Financial Considerations

The estimated costs for Support and Maintenance via the Framework are
£170,000 as included in the Commissioning, Communities and policy Service
Plan 2020/21 update and can be contained within the existing ICT Service
budget.

The current support contract with OpenText expires on 31 March 2021 and
discussions have taken place to agree support measures for the short period
until a purchase order can be issued. OpenText have indicated that a late fee
amounting to 3% contract value per month, approximately £4000, would be
applicable and they would consider waiving this upon receipt of a purchase
order.

4  Legal Considerations

The Director of Legal Services will advise in relation to procurement and
contractual issues, including advice relating to appropriate documentation.

6 Other Considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been
considered; Equality of opportunity, health, human resources, environmental,
transport, property and crime and disorder considerations.

7  Key Decision?
No.
8 Isit necessary to waive the call-in period?

Yes. The contract for EDRM maintenance and support will need to
commence as soon as possible because of the importance of maintaining the
EDRM system. Councillor Tony Kemp, Chair of the Improvement and
Scrutiny Committee, Resources has agreed that call-in should be waived on

Page 18
PHR-1202



Public
the basis that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances
and to it being treated as a matter of urgency due to the urgent nature of the
decision required.

9 Background Papers

CCPO053 — Protocol 2a Business Case

10  Officer’'s Recommendation

That Cabinet Member approves the use of the ComIT 2 Health Trust Europe

Framework under Protocol 2A for the procurement of a contract for EDRM
maintenance and support for one year for a period of 1 year.

EMMA ALEXANDER

Managing Executive Director
Commissioning, Communities and Policy

Page 19
PHR-1202



This page is intentionally left blank



, Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2021
	3 Performance and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 2020-21 as at Quarter 3
	4 Supply of Support and Maintenance for Electronic Document and Records Management System (EDRM)
	7 To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2021

